
 

   

Chief Executive 

Huw Bowen 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Town Hall, Rose Hill, 
Chesterfield, Derbyshire S40 1LP 
 
DX 12356, Chesterfield 
Email  democratic.services@chesterfield.gov.uk 
 
The Chair and Members of 
Employment and General Committee 

Please ask for  Donna Cairns 

 Direct Line 01246 345277 
 Fax  

 
01246 345252 

 1 December 2014 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 

Please attend a meeting of the EMPLOYMENT AND GENERAL 
COMMITTEE to be held on MONDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2014 at 4.30 pm in 
Committee Room 3, Town Hall, Rose Hill, Chesterfield, the agenda for which is 
set out below. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1(Public Information) 
1.  

  
Declarations of Members' and Officers' Interests relating to Items on the 
Agenda  
 

2.  
  
Apologies for Absence  
 

3.  
  
Minutes (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

4.  
  
Calculation of Tax Base 2015/16 (EC1000) (Pages 9 - 16) 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 

Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager 
  

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



E & G 03.11.14 

1 
 
 

EMPLOYMENT AND GENERAL COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Monday, 3rd November, 2014 
 

Present:- 
 

Councillor Elliott (Chair) 

 
Councillors Blank 

Gibson 
 

King 
Simmons 
 

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme 
 

16  
  

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS 
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
 
No declarations were received.  
 

17  
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologises for absence were received from Councillors Bradford and 
Fanshawe.  
 

18  
  

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 30 JANUARY 2014  
 
RESOLVED –  

 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 30 
January, 2014 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair. 

 
19  

  
MINUTES OF COUNCIL HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE HELD 
ON 23 JANUARY, 15 MAY AND 13 AUGUST 2014  
 
The Minutes of the meetings of the Council Health and Safety Committee 
held on 23 January, 15 May and 13 August 2014 were submitted.  
 
*RESOLVED –  
 
 That the Minutes be received and noted.  
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



E & G 03.11.14 

2 
 
 

20  
  

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES IN THE 
BOROUGH OF CHESTERFIELD (EC000)  
 
The Democratic Services Manager submitted a report in relation to the 
statutory review of polling places and polling districts, and to seek 
approval to the proposed changes.   
 
The review had begun with the Council drawing up its proposals and 
publishing notice on 25 July 2014 at its offices and on its website stating 
that the review was to be held.  
 
The Returning Officer for North East Derbyshire constituency was 
consulted but had no comments in relation to the wards of Barrow Hill and 
New Whittington, and Lowgates and Woodthorpe.  
 
It was noted that electors had the right to make representations and 
details were published in the press, on the council’s website and through 
the Community Assemblies on how people could view the proposals and 
make representations. Consultation on the proposals had also taken 
place with the Chesterfield Equalities and Diversity Forum. 
 
Comments were sought from Members of Parliament for the 
constituencies affected by the review, and from borough councillors, 
parish councils and local political parties and election agents.  
 
The review had been based on the electoral team’s knowledge of the 
existing districts and places, informed by comments made by the public, 
owners of premises used as polling stations, views of councillors and 
feedback from presiding and inspecting officers in recent elections.  
 
A number of cases had been identified where the situation was not ideal 
and efforts had been made to address some of these in the review.  A full 
audit of current polling stations was undertaken on 22 May, 2014, from 
which the draft proposals were drawn up. 
 
A total of 10 comments were received from councillors and members of 
the public in support of current and proposed arrangements. 
 
Regard to accessibility issues for people with disabilities was given in line 
with the Electoral Commission guidance.  All polling places are accessible 
‘so far as is reasonable and practicable’. Adjustments are made when 

Page 2



E & G 03.11.14 

3 
 
 

appropriate such as providing ramps to assist voters confined to 
wheelchairs. 
 
It was recognised that not all polling stations are completely accessible to 
all voters, for example there are some where adequate parking very close 
to the entrance may not be available or the ramped access may still have 
a lip or threshold to cross.  
 
In a number of locations it had only been possible to use mobile polling 
stations which have more limited accessibility. It haf been recommended 
to change the polling stations to fixed locations and as such the number 
of mobile units had been reduced from four to one in these proposals.  
 
A summary of the proposed changes was appended to the report. 
 
It was commented that the surface of the land where the mobile unit is 
positioned at Hady Lane, St Leonards had improved, so it was hoped 
previous difficulties with the land becoming ‘boggy’ would be avoided. 
 
It was queried whether the use of public houses could be off-putting to 
voters however it was reported that no such complaints or concerns had 
been raised in the past and although pubs were not a preferred choice, in 
some areas there were no suitable alternatives.  
 
*RESOLVED – 
 

(1) That the proposals arising from the 2014 review of polling 
places and polling districts detailed in Appendix 1 of the report 
be approved. 

 
(2) That the Returning Officer be authorised to designate different 

polling places for those where there are currently concerns 
should this prove possible. 

 
21  

  
INTRODUCTION OF INDIVIDUAL VOTER REGISTRATION UPDATE 
(EC000)  
 
The Democratic Services Manager submitted a report on the progress of 
the transition to Individual Voter Registration (IER) and to outline plans to 
deliver IER prior to and following the publication of the first IER register on 
1 December 2014. 
 

Page 3



E & G 03.11.14 

4 
 
 

Individual voter registration was introduced in England and Wales in June 
2014 replacing the household system of registration. In addition people 
could register to vote online for the first time. 
 
The transition began with a data matching exercise to compare existing 
elector’s details with the details held on the Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP) database. Where they were matched, electors did not 
need to re-register, however those whose details did not match would 
need to re-register.  
 
The report outlined the process by which the data matching process was 
carried out. Initially 69,702 records of electors were matched, which was 
85.66% of the total register. Those whose details did not match with the 
DWP data were then compared against local data, ie Council Tax, so they 
could be matched and not be required to re-register.  
 
This process enabled a further 6041 electors to be confirmed, increasing 
the total to 75,743 confirmed electors, 93.08% of the register. The 
remaining 5632 people were invited to re-register under the new system. 
These people would remain registered until December 2015, unless their 
entitlement to registration changes, eg they move house, but they will be 
unable to vote by Post or by Proxy if they do not re-register.    
 
The report detailed the elements of the write-out process to all electors, 
confirming their registration status.  
 
An update on the latest response figures since the introduction of IER 
was given at the meeting. 
 
It was advised that although the total number of registered electors had 
reduced, the register was more accurate.  
 
Work was to continue on data matching and data mining to improve the 
accuracy of the register, including seeking access to other data sets by 
which the details of electors could be confirmed.  
 
Details of the current and proposed engagement strategies were 
reported. It was also hoped to promote the use of electronic 
communication, including the new facility to register online, to provide a 
more effective and up-to-date customer database. 
 

Page 4



E & G 03.11.14 

5 
 
 

Promotion of electoral registration was to be targeted to young people 
through specific activity, including through secondary schools and 
Chesterfield College. Nursing homes had also been visited to facilitate 
ongoing registration of elderly residents and notification of residency 
changes.  
 
Raising public awareness was to continue using numerous 
communication channels, with an intention to target under-represented 
and hard to reach groups.  
 
The report outlined how the canvass was to be conducted in Autumn 
2015, and detailed proposals for a ‘mini-canvass’ of all households to be 
carried out in January 2015.  
 
Proposed changes to the guidelines and national code of conduct for 
political parties on handling applications for registration, absent vote 
applications and postal ballot packs were also reported. The key changes 
were for campaigners not to handle completed forms due to the type of 
personal data required, and to encourage electors to register online or to 
contact the elections office directly. Further details were to be circulated 
to political groups once the new code of conduct had been published.  
 
*RESOLVED -  
 

That the progress made to date in relation to the transition to 
Individual Electoral Registration, and the ERO’s approach to 
delivering and maintaining a secure, accurate and up to date 
electoral register in compliance with his statutory duties, be noted.  

 
22  

  
ZERO HOURS POLICY (EC130)  
 
The Human Resources Officer submitted a report seeking approval for 
the introduction and implementation of a new Zero Hours Policy. 
 
The Council did not previously have a policy regarding the Council’s 
position on the use of zero hours contracts. The Council is committed to 
fair treatment of its workforce regardless of their different contractual 
arrangements. This policy was developed to formalise this commitment in 
relation to zero hours contracts. 
 
An initial draft policy had been considered by the Policy Working Group, 
and comments on the draft had been sought from Trade Unions and 

Page 5



E & G 03.11.14 

6 
 
 

managers.  Responses to the consultation were summarised at appendix 
B to the report. The draft had been amended as a result of the comments 
received.  
 
The draft policy was presented to and approved by the Policy Working 
Group and by the Council Joint Consultative Committee on 15 October, 
2014. 
 
*RESOLVED –  
 

That the Zero Hours Policy, as attached to the Report, be approved 
to take immediate effect. 

 
23  

  
SMOKING POLICY (EC130)  
 
The Human Resources Officer submitted a report seeking approval for 
the implementation of a revised Smoking Policy. 
 
The Council’s smoking policy had been in place since 1988 with the most 
recent revision having taken place in 2007. 
 
The proposed changes to the policy were in response to the introduction 
and popularity of electronic cigarettes. The review was also an 
opportunity to refresh the policy and to provide more detailed guidance to 
employees and managers on issues relating to smoking at work.  
 
An initial draft policy had been considered by the Policy Working Group, 
and comments on the draft had been sought from Trade Unions and 
managers.  Responses to the consultation were implemented where 
appropriate.  
 
The draft was presented to and approved by the Policy Working Group 
and by the Council Joint Consultative Committee on 15 October, 2014. 
 
*RESOLVED –  
 

That the revised Smoking Policy, as attached to the report, be 
approved to take immediate effect. 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



E & G 03.11.14 

7 
 
 

24  
  

FLEXIBLE WORKING POLICY (EC130)  
 
The Human Resources Officer submitted a report seeking approval for 
the implementation of a revised Flexible Working Policy. 
 
The proposed changes to the policy were in response to a change in 
legislation as of 30 June 2014. This extended the statutory right to 
request flexible working after 26 weeks employment service to all 
employees. This previously applied only to parents and carers. 
 
The draft policy was presented to and approved by the Policy Working 
Group and by the Council Joint Consultative Committee on 15 October, 
2014. 
 
*RESOLVED –  
 

That the revised Flexible Working Policy, as attached to the report, 
be approved to take immediate effect. 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



FOR PUBLICATION 
 
 
 

CALCULATION OF TAX BASE 2015/16  
 

 

MEETING:   EMPLOYMENT & GENERAL COMMITTEE 

DATE:  
  

8 DECEMBER 2014 

REPORT BY:  CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

WARD: ALL 

COMMUNITY 
FORUM: 

ALL 

 

FOR PUBLICATION 
BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR PUBLIC 
REPORTS: 

None 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 To approve the Tax Base calculation for 2015/16. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 1992 
(as amended) require the Borough Council as Billing authority to 
calculate the Tax Base for the Borough and the Parishes and to 
notify the Major Precepting Authorities (Derbyshire County 
Council and Derbyshire Police Authority), and those Parishes 
which request it, by 31st January each year. 

2.2 Section 84 of the Local Government Act 2003 amended the tax 
setting regulations so that the tax base calculation no longer has 
to be approved by the full council.  The calculation of the tax base 
is a procedural matter which, should be delegated to a non-
executive committee.  The Council agreed (17th December 2003) 
to delegate the function to the Employment and General 
Committee. 

2.3 The tax base represents the estimated full year equivalent number 
of chargeable dwellings in an area, expressed as the equivalent 
number of Band D dwellings.  Or more simply, it is an estimate of 
how much income a Council Tax of £1 would raise. 

 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



3.0 CALCULATION OF THE TAX BASE 
 
3.1 The regulations mentioned at paragraph 2.1 prescribe the method 

of calculating the Tax Base and the statements at Appendices A, 
B, C and D show the Council's Tax Base calculation for the Whole 
Area, Chesterfield’s non-parished areas, Staveley Town Council 
and Brimington Parish Council respectively. 

 
3.2 In view of the collection performance to date, it is considered 

appropriate to continue to work on the basis of a collection rate of 
98.1%. 

 
3.3 The overall Tax Base for 2015/16 at 27,781.57 (Appendix A) shows 

an increase of 317.72 or 1.2% on the 2014/15 Tax Base of 
27,463.85. 

 
3.4 The Tax Base for each of the parished areas is as follows: 

 Staveley 3,964.47 – an increase of 31.49 or 0.8% on last year’s 
tax base of 3,932.98 (Appendix C); & 

 Brimington 2,231.39 – an increase of 43.30 or 2.0% on last 
year’s tax base of 2,188.09 (Appendix D). 

 
 
4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The tax base must be set between the 1st December and 31st 

January.  
 
 
5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1  That the report for the calculation of the Council's Tax Base for the 

whole and parts of the area for 2015/16 be approved. 
 
5.2 That pursuant to the report and in accordance with Local 

Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 1992 (as 
amended), the amount calculated by Chesterfield Borough Council 
as its Tax Base for the year 2015/16 shall be: 

Page 10



 
Table – 2015/16 TAX BASE (Equivalent Number of Band ‘D’ 

Dwellings) 

 2013/14 2015/16 

Increase / 
(Decrease) 

No. % 

Chesterfield (whole 
area) 

27,463.85 27,781.57 317.72 1.2 

Staveley Town 
Council 

3,932.98 3,964.98 31.49 0.8 

Brimington Parish 
Council 

2,188.09 2,231.39 43.30 2.0 

  
 
 
6.0  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS TO BE CONSIDERED 
 
6.1 None 
 
 
7.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION  
 
7.1 To fulfil a statutory requirement and to enable the Council Tax to 

be set later in the financial year. 
 
 

B. DAWSON 
HEAD OF FINANCE 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

BAND A A B C D E F G H TOTAL

(Disabled)

Number of Dwellings 26,562.00 10,049.00 6,133.00 3,663.00 1,743.00 516.00 214.00 24.00 48,904.00

Less Exempt/Demolished(classes B & D to 

W)) 296.00 80.00 88.00 31.00 15.00 5.00 2.00 0.00 517.00

Less Council Tax Reduction scheme 10.50 6,510.58 918.76 313.81 101.37 26.98 5.09 0.01 0.00 7,887.10

Less Revised Exempt Class A & C discount 

(on 100% discount) 399.00 96.00 39.00 15.00 7.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 557.00

Less Disregards at 50% (including 50% for 

work related dwellings) 9.50 6.50 5.00 2.00 2.00 6.50 7.00 2.00 40.50

Less Single Person and Disregard 

Discounts at 25% 2.75 3,149.50 844.00 427.50 190.50 70.50 18.25 7.25 0.00 4,710.25

Plus Empty Homes Surcharge (50% 

addition) 60.50 12.50 6.00 1.50 2.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 83.50

Adjustment for Disabled Relief 43.00 2.00 -1.00 -22.00 -10.00 -9.00 14.00 -6.00 -11.00 0.00

Adjustments for New Properties and 

anticipated changes in reliefs
0.00 80.87 31.62 25.01 25.75 4.65 9.25 0.00 0.00 177.15

Total for Band 29.75 16,340.79 8,146.86 5,268.70 3,340.38 1,619.17 504.41 191.74 11.00 35,452.80

Multiplier 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9 -

Band D Equivalent 16.53 10,893.86 6,336.45 4,683.29 3,340.38 1,978.99 728.59 319.57 22.00 28,319.65

Tax Base 2015/16 (on the basis of a 98.1% 

Collection Rate) 16.21 10,686.88 6,216.05 4,594.31 3,276.91 1,941.38 714.75 313.49 21.58 27,781.57

Prev Year 27,463.85     

Change 317.72          

Change 1.2%

2015/2016 COUNCIL TAX BASE  -  WHOLE AREA (change in local discounts)

P
age 13



APPENDIX A

BAND A A B C D E F G H TOTAL

(Disabled)

Number of Dwellings 18,358.00 8,234.00 4,852.00 3,117.00 1,618.00 492.00 197.00 17.00 36,885.00

Less Exempt/Demolished(classes B & D to 

W)) 228.00 62.00 79.00 26.00 15.00 5.00 2.00 0.00 417.00

Less Council Tax Reduction scheme 4.65 4,476.22 777.02 225.04 90.79 24.70 3.44 0.01 0.00 5,601.87

Less Revised Exempt Class A & C discount 

(on 100% discount) 294.00 84.00 33.00 13.00 7.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 432.00

Less Disregards at 50% (including 50% for 

work related dwellings) 7.50 4.00 4.00 0.50 0.50 4.00 3.50 2.00 26.00

Less Single Person and Disregard 

Discounts at 25% 2.50 2,304.25 711.75 341.25 168.75 67.00 17.00 7.00 0.00 3,619.50

Plus Empty Homes Surcharge (50% 

addition) 0.00 42.50 9.50 5.00 1.50 1.50 1.00 0.00 0.00 61.00

Adjustment for Disabled Relief 27.00 11.00 -8.00 -13.00 -6.00 -9.00 10.00 -6.00 -6.00 0.00

Adjustments for New Properties and 

anticipated changes in reliefs
0.00 52.71 30.07 21.21 25.75 4.65 8.65 0.00 0.00 143.04

Total for Band 19.85 11,154.23 6,626.80 4,182.93 2,839.20 1,500.96 481.21 178.49 9.00 26,992.67

Multiplier 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9 -

Band D Equivalent 11.03 7,436.15 5,154.18 3,718.16 2,839.20 1,834.51 695.08 297.48 18.00 22,003.79

Tax Base 2015/16 (on the basis of a 98.1% 

Collection Rate) 10.82 7,294.87 5,056.25 3,647.52 2,785.25 1,799.65 681.88 291.82 17.66 21,585.71

Prev Year 21,342.77

Change 242.94

Change 1.1%

2015/2016 COUNCIL TAX BASE  -  CHESTERFIELD (change in local discounts)

P
age 14



APPENDIX A

BAND A A B C D E F G H TOTAL

(Disabled)

Number of Dwellings 5,705.00 1,064.00 776.00 308.00 66.00 20.00 11.00 4.00 7,954.00

Less Exempt/Demolished(classes B & D to 

W)) 45.00 8.00 6.00 4.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 63.00

Less Council Tax Reduction scheme 4.18 1,512.47 79.93 60.02 7.23 1.43 1.65 0.00 0.00 1,666.91

Less Revised Exempt Class A & C discount 

(on 100% discount) 64.00 4.00 3.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 73.00

Less Disregards at 50% (including 50% for 

work related dwellings) 0.00 0.50 1.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.00 5.00

Less Single person and Disregard 

Discounts at 25% 0.00 578.75 75.25 48.50 10.75 2.75 0.75 0.25 0.00 717.00

Plus Empty Homes Surcharge (50% 

addition) 12.00 1.00 0.50 0.00 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 14.00

Adjustment for Disabled Relief 12.00 -8.00 4.00 -6.00 -1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 -2.00 0.00

Adjustments for New Properties and 

anticipated changes in reliefs
0.00 14.53 0.00 2.90 0.00 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.00 18.03

Total for Band 7.82 3,522.81 900.32 655.38 282.52 61.82 17.70 10.75 2.00 5,461.12

Multiplier 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9 -

Band D Equivalent 4.34 2,348.54 700.25 582.56 282.52 75.56 25.57 17.92 4.00 4,041.25

Tax Base 2015/16 (on the basis of a 98.1% 

Collection Rate) 4.26 2,303.92 686.94 571.49 277.15 74.12 25.08 17.58 3.92 3,964.47

Prev Year 3,932.98     

Change 31.49

Change 0.8%

2015/2016 COUNCIL TAX BASE  -  STAVELEY TOWN COUNCIL (change in local discounts)

P
age 15



APPENDIX A

BAND A A B C D E F G H TOTAL

(Disabled)

Number of Dwellings 2,499.00 751.00 505.00 238.00 59.00 4.00 6.00 3.00 4,065.00

Less Exempt/Demolished(classes B & D to 

W)) 23.00 10.00 3.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37.00

Less Council Tax Reduction Scheme 1.67 521.88 61.81 28.76 3.34 0.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 618.32

Less Revised Exempt Class A & C discount 

(on 100% discount) 41.00 8.00 3.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 52.00

Less Disregards at 50% (including 50% for 

work related dwellings) 0.00 1.50 1.00 0.50 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.50 0.00 9.50

Less Single person and Disregard 

Discounts at 25% 0.25 266.50 57.00 37.75 11.00 0.75 0.50 0.00 0.00 373.75

Plus Empty Homes Surcharge (50% 

addition) 0.00 6.00 2.00 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.50

Adjustment for Disabled Relief 4.00 -1.00 3.00 -3.00 -3.00 0.00 4.00 -1.00 -3.00 0.00

Adjustments for New Properties and 

anticipated changes in reliefs
0.00 13.63 1.55 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.08

Total for Band 2.08 1,663.75 619.74 430.39 218.66 56.39 5.50 2.50 0.00 2,999.01

Multiplier 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9 -

Band D Equivalent 1.16 1,109.17 482.02 382.57 218.66 68.92 7.94 4.17 0.00 2,274.60

Tax Base 2015/16 (on the basis of a 98.1% 

Collection Rate) 1.13 1,088.09 472.86 375.30 214.51 67.61 7.79 4.09 0.00 2,231.39

Prev Year 2,188.09

Change 43.30

Change 2.0%

2015/2016 COUNCIL TAX BASE  -  BRIMINGTON PARISH COUNCIL (change in local discounts)

P
age 16


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Calculation of Tax Base 2015/16 (EC1000)
	Copy of 2015-16 Tax Base Ests


